


JOYCE

More than four decades have seemingly flown by since JOYCE

first opened its doors in Hong Kong — in terms of fashion and
decorative currents, a decidedly different city than in the early 1970s.
We are proud of the unique contribution which JOYCE has made

to the development of local and regional sensibilities and our

role in shaping one of the world’s leading retail capitals. With the
support of our shareholders, employees and partners, we remain
committed to building on these accomplishments.
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Chairman’s Statement

OVERVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Net profit attributable to Shareholders was HK$151.1 million (2011: HK$132.7 million). Earnings per share were 9.3 cents (2011:
8.2 cents).

Group turnover for the year totaled HK$1,324.0 million (2011: HK$1,147.7 million), a year-on-year increase of 15.4% compared
with a 7.9% increase the previous year.

Hong Kong retail operations contributed turnover of HK$1,122.4 million, up 10.8% year-on-year, accounting for 84.8% (2011:
88.2%) of Group turnover.

The mainland China division contributed turnover of HK$201.2 million, a sizeable increase of 49.3% due primarily to the opening of
six shops, adding 34,000 square feet of selling area, in Beijing. However, the division sustained an operating loss of HK$9.7 million
(2011: a profit of HK$14.5 million). This was mainly due to operating losses, including one-off pre-opening expenses (chiefly rental
costs) and shop opening event costs, incurred by newly-opened shops, including the 20,000 square-foot JOYCE flagship in phase
3 of China World Mall, Beijing.

The sales growth momentum reported by the Group for the first-half of the year was unsustainable through the second half. Weaker
sales, particularly in the fourth quarter, reflected slowing growth in Hong Kong’s retail sector on the whole, as the deepening
financial crisis in Europe and uncertainty in the global economy began to weigh on consumer sentiment in Hong Kong as well as
affect spending by visitors.

Looking ahead, the Group can expect an exceptionally challenging year. The past year afforded the opportunity to expand our
retail footprint in China, fine-tune our multi-label operations and build out our JOYCE Beauty business. However, going forward,

a combination of external factors promises to exert considerable pressure on profitability. These include: the continuing fiscal
turmoil in the Eurozone with no clear denouement; indications of slowing growth in the Chinese economy; local inflation; rising staff
retention and training costs as global luxury brands continue their aggressive expansion in the territory; and escalating rental costs
in Hong Kong accompanied by the risk of non-renewal of some leases. Because of the keen competition among brands for prime
retail space, the lease of the Boss shop at Canton Road which expires in August 2012 can only be renewed with its area reduced
by half. This will significantly constrain the profitability of the shop. For the year under review, the shop accounted for 13.6% of

the Group’s turnover and 42.5% of the Group’s operating profit. As a result of the reduction in shop area, the operating profit
contribution from this shop will drop significantly for the financial year 2012/13. It is expected that these factors will adversely affect
profitability for the financial year 2012/13.

In view of the challenges ahead, JOYCE will take a cautious approach to stock purchasing and focus on improving the efficiency

of retail operations, in particular new shops, through maximizing gross margins and sell-through by monitoring on-sale periods and
sale discounts coupled with stringent control of overheads.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

At the financial year-end, the Group operated a total of 48 shops (2011: 47), comprising four multi-label JOYCE stores, 17
mono-brand shops (including three Boss shops) and seven JOYCE Beauty outlets in Hong Kong, 10 Marni shops in Hong Kong
and Taiwan under the joint venture partnership with Mamni International S.A., and 10 shops in mainland China.

In August 2011, the Group established an office in Beijing’s China World Office 2 tower to provide staff training and logistics support
for the steadily expanding local operation. In May 2012, the Group’s headquarters were relocated from the JOYCE Building on
Wong Chuk Hang Road in Hong Kong’s Aberdeen district to the new One Island South office tower nearby to accommodate future
growth.

Hong Kong

The year under review saw several significant debuts. A new Etro men’s store opened on The Landmark’s dedicated men’s
shopping level in April 2011. Hong Kong’s first free-standing Neil Barrett boutique opened at The Landmark in August 2011. And in
March 2012, Hong Kong'’s first free-standing Alexander Wang boutique opened at Harbour City in Tsimshatsui.

In October 2011, a 3,800 square-foot JOYCE multi-label store — with a fashion-forward brand mix modeled on that of the
successful Pacific Place store — was opened at The Lee Gardens shopping complex in Causeway Bay.

The JOYCE concession in Lane Crawford at Pacific Place was closed in January 2012 as part of the closure of the department
store. A replacement JOYCE concession was opened in the same month in the Lane Crawford department store on Canton Road
in Tsimshatsui.

JOYCE Beauty, adding exclusive brand distribution agreements to its portfolio, continues to be one of the Group’s key growth units,
with annual turnover up by 26.8%, accounting for 9.5% of Group turnover this past year (2011: 8.7%).

The first JOYCE Grooming boutique for men, operated under the JOYCE Beauty umbrella, opened on The Landmark’s dedicated
men’s shopping level in November 2011. A JOYCE Beauty concession corner was opened in the same month in the Lane Crawford
department store on Canton Road.

Four new JOYCE Beauty points-of-sale, adding more than 2,500 square feet of selling area, will be launched in Hong Kong in the

first half of the new financial year: at the new LAB Queensway shopping complex above the Admiralty MTR (Mass Transit Railway)
hub; at New Town Plaza in Shatin; at the new Hysan Place office and retail tower in Causeway Bay; and at Pacific Place.
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Mainland China

Following a year of consolidation in 2010/11, resulting in improved operating profit, the mainland China division entered a new
phase of expansion of both its multi-label and mono-brand operations.

In September 2011, a 20,000 square-foot JOYCE flagship store, including a JOYCE Beauty corner and an On Pedder concession,
opened in phase 3 of Beijing’s China World Mall on the east side of the city. This was followed in October 2011 by the launch of a
3,800 square-foot Etro boutique at China World and a 5,600 square-foot Alexander McQueen boutique in Sanlitun North Village —
the capital’s first. In May 2011, a 4,100 square-foot Dsquared? shop was also opened in Sanlitun.

In April 2011, a 3,300 square-foot JOYCE Warehouse was opened in Beijing’s Chao Yang district, which will minimize post-season
levels of unsold stock as well as develop brand awareness among aspiring local consumers.

Two additional JOYCE multi-label stores will open in the coming financial year: a 3,900-square-foot store at Shin Kong Place in
Beijing and a 5,400-square-foot store at the new IAPM mall on Shanghai’s Huaihai Road.

Marni Joint Venture Business

The Group’s 49%-held joint venture with Marni International S.A., formed in 2005, currently operates 10 boutiques in Hong Kong
and Taiwan, including a boutique opened in March 2012 at The Lee Gardens in Causeway Bay. Following the success of the
specially-edited Marni collection featured in a “pop-up” shop at Harbour City, which ran from April 2011 through March 2012, a
Marni Edition boutique was established at Harbour City in March 2012. Sales of the Mami collection in Lane Crawford at Pacific
Place were discontinued in January 2012 as part of the closure of the department store.

With the improvement in turnover and gross margin, the joint venture’s profit contribution to the Group grew by 19.3% to
HK$7.0 million (2011: HK$5.8 million).
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Chairman’s Statement

Marketing
JOYCE applied creative marketing to boost a series of store openings on the mainland and continued to effectively exploit the global
convergence of fashion, art and technology in showcasing new labels and seasonal collections in Hong Kong.

In October 2011, the launch of the new JOYCE muilti-label store at The Lee Gardens shopping center in Causeway Bay was
supported by the “Cast Your Vote” promotional campaign whereby style aficionados voted online for Hong Kong’s most stylish
residents. The 30 highest-ranking nominees were photographed by New York'’s Erik Madigan Heck for an exclusive in-store
exhibition. During the campaign period, daily traffic to Joyce.com jumped by 141.3% while the average number of daily page views
rose by 75.3%. A total of 594,174 votes were cast.

The September 2011 opening of a 20,000 square-foot flagship JOYCE store in phase 3 of China World Mall in Beijing was
synchronized with the launches of two important mono-brand boutiques. Creative director Sarah Burton attended a series of special
events including a spectacular runway show to mark the opening of China’s first Alexander McQueen boutique. Designer Veronica
Etro hosted an intimate dinner in Beijing to celebrate the opening of Etro’s first China flagship.

To promote the autumn/winter 2011 collections in Hong Kong, JOYCE invited Mugler creative director Nicola Formichetti and his
muse, Rico Genest to host a fashion show and gala event. For spring/summer 2012, Paco Rabanne creative director Manish Arora
made his first visit to the city. Two seasonal trunk shows were also staged for top spenders and VIP customers at The Pawn, a
popular venue, and trendy Tai Ping Shan Street, in the rapidly-gentrifying Sheung Wan district, which was transformed into an
outdoor high-fashion fair.

The Group continued to develop and market its JOYCE Card loyalty program. The number of JOYCE cardholders in Hong Kong
and China grew by 20%, with the number of Platinum cardholders increasing by 41%.

Dividend

In view of the Group’s satisfactory performance, the Board declares the payment of an interim dividend (in lieu of recommending a
final dividend) of 5.0 cents per share (2011: 4.0 cents) for the financial year.

The Board remains grateful to the staff and management of JOYCE and all other stakeholders in the Group. JOYCE has
commenced its fifth decade of operation in an enviable position of strength and industry leadership.

Stephen T. H. Ng
Chairman

29 June 2012
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

(A) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
() Business Review

An analysis on the Group’s business for the year under review is given in the Chairman’s Statement under the section
headed “Business Review”.

10

(I) Financial Review

(i)

(i)

Review of 2011/12 Results

With a satisfactory growth in turnover and stringent control of overheads, the Group’s net profit attributable to
Shareholders reached HK$151.1 million (2011: HK$132.7 million) for the year ended 31 March 2012. Earnings per
share were 9.3 cents (2011: 8.2 cents).

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2012 was HK$1,324.0 million, an increase of 15.4% over

last year. The Hong Kong division continued to be the core business of the Group, accounting for 84.8% (2011:
88.2%) of Group turnover. Turnover for the Hong Kong division increased by 10.8% against last year, mainly due
to the general improvement in the local consumer sentiment and partly due to contributions from new shops.
With the sales contribution from shops opening in Beijing during the year, the mainland China division was able to
achieve turnover growth of 49.3%.

Overall gross margin decreased by 0.8 percentage points as compared to last year, partly due to lower margins
on increased China sales and partly the result of increased stock provisions for slower stockturn in the Spring/
Summer 2012 season.

The Hong Kong division recording an operating profit of HK$181.0 million (2011: HK$141.6 million), was the key
contributor to profit growth for the financial year. The mainland China division’s profit performance was affected
by one-off opening event costs of HK$6.1 million and pre-opening rental expenses of HK$10.0 million incurred for
new shops. As a result, the mainland China division recorded an operating loss of HK$9.7 million as compared
with the previous year's operating profit of HK$14.5 million.

For the year under review, the profit contribution from the Marni joint venture business increased from HK$5.8
million to HK$7.0 million due to the improvement in both turnover and gross margin.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s financial position remained liquid with total cash deposits and cash on hand
amounting to HK$495.4 million. No bank borrowings were outstanding at 31 March 2012.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk Management
Most of the Group’s imported purchases are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in Euros. To minimize
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group from time to time reviews its foreign exchange positions
and, when it considers appropriate and necessary, will hedge its foreign exchange exposure by means of forward
foreign exchange contracts.

(iv) Finance
At 31 March 2012, the Group had banking facilities totalling HK$279.8 million (2011: HK$279.8 million).

(v) Employees
The Group employed 570 staff as at 31 March 2012. Employees are remunerated according to the nature of
their positions and market trends, with merit components incorporated in annual salary increments to reward and
motivate individual performance. The Group provides appropriate various job-related training programs to staff.
Total staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to HK$164.8 million.

(B) BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

(1) Directors
Stephen T. H. NG, Chairman (Age: 59)
Mr. Ng has been a Director of the Company since 2000 and became the Chairman of the Company in November
2007. He also serves as a member and the chairman of the Company’s Nomination Committee. Mr. Ng is the
deputy chairman of publicly-listed Wheelock and Company Limited (“Wheelock”). He is also the deputy chairman and
managing director of The Wharf (Holdings) Limited (“Wharf”), and the chairman and chief executive officer of i-CABLE
Communications Limited (“i-CABLE”) as well as the chairman of Harbour Centre Development Limited (“HCDL”), all
such companies being publicly-listed subsidiaries of Wheelock. Furthermore, Mr. Ng is a non-executive director of
publicly-listed Greentown China Holdings Limited.

Antonio CHAN, Director (Age: 64)

Mr. Chan, FCA (AUST), FCPA, FCIS, FHKIoD, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2004. He also serves as a member and the chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee, and a member of the
Company’s Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Chan has spent 37 years in the accounting
profession and practised as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong for over 20 years. He has had extensive
experience in management, auditing and investigation, executive recruitment, business consulting, corporate finance
and administration. He is also an independent non-executive director of Surface Mount Technology (Holdings) Limited,
a company listed in Singapore. He serves as a pastor with Asian Outreach Alliance. Mr. Chan is a Chartered Accountant
and Certified Practising Accountant in Australia and senior member of a number of professional bodies, including
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

Doreen Y. F. LEE, Director (Age: 56)

Ms. Lee has been a Director of the Company since 2003. She is an executive director of publicly-listed Wharf, the vice
chairman and senior managing director of Wharf China Estates Limited, the senior managing director of Harbour City
Estates Limited and Times Square Limited, and the managing director of Wharf Estates Limited, all being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Wharf. She was also a former director of publicly-listed HCDL from July 2010 to June 2012. Ms. Lee is a
graduate of The University of Hong Kong where she obtained her bachelor’s degree in Arts (Hon).

Eric F. C. LI, Director (Age: 83)

Mr. Li, BscEE, MscEE, MBA, FIM, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 1990. He
is the chairman and chief executive officer of The Kowloon Dairy Limited and a non-executive director of publicly-listed
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, as well as a director of BEA Life Limited, Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited
and several other companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Arkansas, United States, a Master of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University

of Michigan, United States, and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of California, United
States. He is also a fellow of the Chartered Management Institute.

Eric K. K. LO, Director (Age: 63)

Mr. Lo has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 1998. He also serves as a member
and the chairman of the Company’s Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Company’s Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director of publicly-listed The Sincere Company,
Limited as well as a director of several companies in Hong Kong.

Paul Y. C. TSUI, Director (Age: 65)

Mr. Tsui, FCCA, FCPA, FCMA, FCIS, CGA-Canada, has been a Director of the Company since 2000. He also serves
as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Tsui is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Furthermore, he is an executive director and the group chief financial officer of two
publicly-listed companies, namely, Wheelock and Wharf, and also a director of three publicly-listed subsidiaries of
Wheelock, namely, HCDL, i-CABLE and Wheelock Properties (Singapore) Limited in Singapore as well as the vice
chairman of Wheelock Properties Limited (formerly a publicly-listed company until it became wholly-owned subsidiary of
Wheelock in July 2010).

Note: The Company confirms that it has received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
confirming their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them independent.
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(I) Senior Management
Andrew D. F. KEITH, President (Age: 42)
Mr. Andrew Keith is the President of Greater China multi-brand fashion retail groups Lane Crawford and Joyce
Boutique. Mr. Keith was appointed President of Joyce Boutique in 2008, working quickly to redefine Joyce’s position
as the pinnacle of fashion and creativity, revamping its stores and brand assortment. He also secured franchise
agreements for management and distribution of some of Joyce’s most popular brands including Rick Owens
and Alexander McQueen. Mr. Keith brings more than 19 years experience in the fashion industry across product
development and design, merchandising and brand management to The Lane Crawford Joyce Group.

(C)DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)

in respect of information required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange by the Directors and/or Chief
Executive of the Company pursuant to the SFO or to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, there were no interests, both long and short positions, held as at 31 March 2012 by any of the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), nor had there been any rights to subscribe for any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company held by any of them at any time during the financial year.

(D)SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

Given below are the names of all parties, who/which were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2012, the respective relevant numbers of shares in which
they were, and/or were deemed to be, interested as at that date as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO (the “Register”) and the percentages which the shares represented to the issued share capital of the

Company:
No. of Ordinary Shares
Names (percentage of issued capital)
(i) Allied Wisdom International Limited 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)
(i) Wisdom Gateway Limited 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)
(i) ~ HSBC Trustee (Guernsey) Limited 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)
(iv)  Mr. Peter K. C. Woo 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)

Note: Duplication occurs in respect of all of the shareholdings stated above in that they all represent the same block of shares.

All the interests stated above represented long positions and as at 31 March 2012, there were no short position interests
recorded in the Register.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

(E) PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes of the Group and the employers’ pension costs charged to the consolidated income statement
for the year under review are set out in Note 2.16(c) to the Financial Statements on pages 96 and 97, and Note 7 on page 113.

The total employers’ pension cost in respect of all pension schemes of the Group, including the cost related to the Mandatory
Provident Fund which is not operated by the Group, charged to consolidated income statement during the year ended 31
March 2012 amounted to HK$7.5 million.

(F) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

14

() Summary of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)

(@  Purpose of the Scheme:

To provide employees and the executives of the Group with the opportunity of acquiring an equity interest in the
Company, to continue to provide them with the motivation and incentive to give best contribution towards the
Group’s continued growth and success.

(b)  Participants of the Scheme:

Any full-time employee or executive director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (the “Executive”) who
has on the day preceding the date of offer been an employee or executive director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries for at least three years and any other employee or executive director of the Company or any
subsidiary nominated by the Directors of the Company to be an Executive.

) ) Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company (the “Shares”) available for
issue under the Scheme and any other share option schemes as at 31 March 2012:

136,380,000
(i)  Percentage of the issued share capital that it represents as at 31 March 2012:
8.4%
(d)  Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme as at 31 March 2012:

No option may be granted to any one Executive which if exercised in full would result in the total number of Shares
already issued and issuable to him under all the options previously granted to him under the Scheme and also
under other share option schemes and of Shares issuable to that Executive under the proposed option exceeding
25% of the maximum aggregate number of Shares in respect of which options may at that time be granted under
the Scheme and any such other schemes.
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Furthermore, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options (including both
exercised and outstanding options) granted to each Executive in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue unless approved by Shareholders of the Company.
Period within which the Shares must be taken up under an option:
Within five years from the date on which the option is offered.
Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised:
One year from the date on which the option is offered.
(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the option:
HK$10
(i)  The period within which payments or calls must or may be made:
28 days after the offer date of an option
(i) ~ The period within which loans for purposes of the payments or calls must be repaid:
Not applicable
Basis of determining the exercise price:
The exercise price shall be determined by the Directors, but in any event must be at least the higher of:

(i) the indicative price per Share for the subscription of Shares under the option as specified in the written offer;

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iv)  the nominal value of a Share.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012 15



Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

(i) The remaining life of the Scheme:
Approximately two years (expiring on 26 August 2014)

(I1) Details of share options granted under the Scheme
No share option of the Company was issued, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding throughout the financial year.

(G)MAJOR CUSTOMERS & SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted for approximately 2% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 38.9% of the total purchases for the year and the
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 12.4%.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those Shareholders whom to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

(H)DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. P. Y. C. Tsui, being also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company’s parent company, namely, Wisdom Gateway
Limited (“WGL"), is considered under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as having an interest in certain subsidiary(ies) of WGL
which is/are engaged in retail businesses or an interest in certain sub-holding company(ies) of the relevant subsidiary(ies).

The Lane Crawford store and some other retail businesses carried on by the relevant subsidiary(ies) of WGL to a certain extent
constitute competing businesses of the Group. Nevertheless, since the retail businesses of the Group are primarily targeted

at different sectors of the market and would attract customers of different spending power or habit compared to those carried
on by the relevant subsidiary(ies) of WGL, the Group considers that its interests in the relevant sector of retailing business is
adequately safeguarded.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the
Company would on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the
Group’s retailing businesses are and continue to be run on the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
that of WGL group.
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(1) PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws or regulations of Bermuda (in which country the Company
was incorporated) which, in the event of new shares being issued by the Company, would oblige the Company to offer new
shares to existing Shareholders, or, in the event of any Shareholders intending to dispose of any of their shareholdings in the
Company, would require such Shareholders to offer to sell the relevant shares to other Shareholders of the Company.

(J) BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

No bank borrowings were outstanding as at 31 March 2012.

(K)INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the financial year.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
March 2012.

(M) DISCLOSURE OF CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is information in relation to certain continuing connected transactions involving the Company and/or its
subsidiaries, particulars of which were previously disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 4 September 2009,
1 April 2011, 30 December 2011 and 27 March 2012 respectively and are required under the Listing Rules to be disclosed in
the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Company.

() Master Agreement, etc., for leasing transactions with rents payable
by the Group
On 1 April 2011, a renewal master concession agreement (the “LC Master Agreement”) was entered into between the
Company and Lane Crawford (Hong Kong) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of WGL) (“LCHK?”) for a term of three
years from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2014 for the purpose of regulating certain concession arrangements with LCHK
for the use of premises by the Group at various retail spaces inside various Lane Crawford stores operated by LCHK
at different premises and, among other things, adopting a revised annual cap amount in respect of the rental and/or
turnover commission payable by the Group to LCHK. Such retail spaces inside Lane Crawford stores are needed by the
Group for the purpose of operation of its retail businesses.
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

18

Furthermore, on 30 December 2011, the Company, WGL and LCHK entered into a tripartite agreement supplemental
to the LC Master Agreement (the “LC Supplemental Agreement”). The purpose of the LC Supplemental Agreement

is, among others, to (a) broaden the scope of the LC Master Agreement to also include tenancy arrangements for
commercial spaces, including office and retail spaces, in addition to those stipulated in the LC Master Agreement,
namely, concession arrangements for retail spaces in Lane Crawford department stores; (b) broaden the scope of the
LC Master Agreement to include any such tenancy arrangements entered or to be entered into by the Group with any
such subsidiary(ies) of WGL which are not subsidiary(ies) but fellow subsidiary(ies) of LCHK; and (c) revise the aggregate
annual cap amount in respect of the rents payable by the Group for the second and third years during the three-year
term under the LC Master Agreement to HK$40.0 million (instead of the original annual cap amount of HK$20.0 million
as provided in the LC Master Agreement).

Under the LC Master Agreement as supplemented, the aggregate annual rental/turnover commission payable by the
Group to LCHK is subject to annual cap amounts previously disclosed in the abovementioned announcements of the
Company dated 1 April 2011 and 30 December 2011. The aggregate annual rental/turnover commission paid by the
Group to LCHK under the individual concession agreements as covered by the LC Master Agreement amounted to
HK$11.9 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2012,

Also on 30 December 2011, a tenancy agreement (the “OIS TA”) was entered into between the Company as the tenant
and OIS Realty Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of WGL) (“OIS Realty”) as the landlord for the leasing of certain office
spaces in One Island South, 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong, for use by the Group. The entering into
of the OIS TA is for the purpose of running the Company’s head office.

As WGL is a substantial shareholder of the Company, and each of LCHK and OIS Realty is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
WGL, the LC Master Agreement and the LC Supplemental Agreement together with various transactions contemplated
and/or governed thereunder, and also the OIS TA constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
the Listing Rules.
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(I) Master Agreement for leasing transactions with rents receivable by
the Group
Various concession arrangements were previously entered into between certain subsidiaries of the Company as tenants
(the “Eligible Head Tenants”) and certain subsidiaries and/or associated companies of WGL as concessionaires (the
“Eligible Concessionaires”) in respect of the leasing of various retail spaces inside various JOYCE shops.

On 4 September 2009, a master concession agreement (the “Master Concession Agreement”) was entered into
between the Company and WGL for a term of two years and six months from 1 October 2009 to 31 March 2012 for
the purpose of, among other things, regulating those concession arrangements between the Eligible Head Tenants
and Eligible Concessionaires and adopting an annual cap amount in respect of the rental and/or turnover commission
payable by the Eligible Concessionaires to the Eligible Head Tenants during the term of the Master Concession
Agreement.

On 27 March 2012, the Company entered into a renewal master concession agreement (the “Renewal MCA”) with WGL
for a new term of three years commencing on 1 April 2012 and expiring on 31 March 2015. The Renewal MCA is for the
purpose of, inter alia, regulating various concession agreements between WGL group as Eligible Concessionaires and the
Group as Eligible Head Tenants in respect of various retail spaces inside various JOYCE shops and for the adoption of an
aggregate annual cap amount in respect of the rental and/or turnover commission payable by WGL group to the Group.

Also on 27 March 2012, the Company and WGL entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) for the purpose of, inter alia, revising the annual cap amount applicable to the financial year ended 31
March 2012 to HK$15 million (instead of the original annual cap of HK$9.9 million as provided in the Master Concession
Agreement), so as to enable the Group to receive from WGL group the full amounts of the aggregate annual rental
and/or turnover commission payable by the latter under various concession agreements and which in aggregate

would exceed the original annual cap of HK$9.9 million. The aggregate annual rental/turnover commission received

by the Group from WGL group under various individual concession agreements as covered by the Master Concession
Agreement amounted to HK$12.1 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

As WGL is a substantial shareholder of the Company, the Renewal MCA together with various concession

arrangements, including all the individual concession agreements governed thereunder, and also the Supplemental
Agreement, constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

Confirmation from Directors etc.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected

transactions mentioned under section M(l) & M(ll) above (collectively, the “Transactions”) and confirmed that the Transactions were

entered into:

(@ by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms that are no less favourable than those available to or from (as appropriate) independent third

parties; and

(c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing such Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Furthermore, the auditor of the Company has advised the following:
(1)  the Transactions had received the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors;
(2)  the Transactions had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the Transactions; and

(8)  the relevant cap amounts have not been exceeded during the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

20 JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, all the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), which were inforce during such financial year, were met by the
Company.

(B) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company who were in office
during the financial year ended 31 March 2012, they have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during the
financial year.

(C)BOARD OF DIRECTORS

() Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance
The Company’s Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors. Four Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2012. The composition of
the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out below:

Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings
Chairman
Stephen T. H. Ng 4/4

Non-executive Directors
Doreen Y. F. Lee 4/4
Paul Y. C. Tsui 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Antonio Chan 3/4
EricF.C. Li 3/4
Eric K. K. Lo 4/4
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Each Director of the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her calibre, experience and stature, and
his/her potential to contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its businesses. Apart from formal meetings,
matters requiring Board approval were arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.

(I) Operation of the Board
The Company is headed by an effective Board which makes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The
Company’s management has closely monitored changes to regulations that affect its corporate affairs and businesses,
and changes to accounting standards, and adopted appropriate reporting format in its interim report, annual report and
other related documents to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. Where these changes are pertinent to the Company or Directors’ disclosure obligations, the
Directors are either briefed during Board meetings or issued with regular updates and materials to keep them abreast of
their responsibilities and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group. Newly appointed Directors
receive briefings and orientation on their legal and other responsibilities as a Director and the role of the Board. The
Company has also provided appropriate information in a timely manner to the Directors to enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the management. Decisions on important matters are
specifically reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s strategic policies, major investment and funding decisions and
major commitments relating to the Group’s operations.

(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are distinct and separate.

The Chairman, namely, Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng, who is a Non-executive Director, is responsible for leading and managing the
operation of the Board, focuses on Group strategies and Board issues, and ensures a cohesive working relationship between
members of the Board and management. He also monitors the performance of the senior management of the Group.
Presently, no employee of the Company holds the office of chief executive officer. The job functions of chief executive officer
of the Company and the Group are performed by Mr. Andrew D. F. Keith and he is accountable to the Chairman.

(E) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All existing Non-executive Directors of the Company have their respective terms of appointment coming to an end normally
one year after re-election as Directors at the last Annual General Meeting.
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(F) BOARD COMMITTEES

() Remuneration Committee
The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee (the “RC”) consisting of one Non-executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors.

24

One RC meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 March 2012. Attendance of the Members is set out below:

Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
Eric K. K. Lo (Chairman) 11
Antonio Chan 11
Paul Y. C. Tsui 1

@

The terms of reference of the RC are aligned with the provisions set out in the Code as recently revised which
came into force from 1 April 2012 onwards (the “Revised Code”). Given below are the main duties of the RC:

(@)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals by reference to the Board'’s corporate
goals and objectives;

either:

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; or

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Report

(i)

26

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

()  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

(@ toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

(i) to advise Shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service contracts of Directors that require
Shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

The work performed by the RC for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 is summarised below:

(@ review of the Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of Directors and senior management;

(b)  consideration of the emoluments for all Directors and senior management; and

(c) review of the level of fees for Directors and Audit Committee Members.

The basis of determining the emoluments payable to its Directors and senior management by the Company is
by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed company in Hong Kong to directors and senior
executives of comparable calibre and job responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration
package as is fit and appropriate. Apart from a fee at the rate of HK$45,000 per annum payable to Mr. Antonio
Chan by reason of his being a Member and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, there was no other Director

receiving any emoluments. The basis of determining such Audit Committee Member’s fee is by reference to the
level of fees of similar nature normally paid by a listed company in Hong Kong to its audit committee members.
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() Nomination Committee
The Company set up a Nomination Committee on 1 February 2012 comprising three members, namely, the Chairman
of the Company Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng (as its chairman) and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Antonio Chan and Mr. Eric K. K. Lo.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in the Revised Code. Given
below are the main duties of the Nomination Committee:

(@  toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) toassess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; and

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

(11l) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of one Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors.

All Members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements and are aided by the auditor of the
Group as and when required. In addition, Mr. Antonio Chan and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui have the appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in financial matters.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2012. Attendance of the Members
is set out below:

Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
Antonio Chan (Chairman) 2/2
Eric K. K. Lo 2/2
Paul Y. C. Tsui 2/2
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in the Revised Code and
the recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Given below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(A)  Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(@)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of their resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should discuss with the
auditors the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit services. For
this purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Committee should report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any matters
where action or improvement is needed.

(B) Review of financial information of the Company

(@

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission to the
Board, the Committee should focus particularly on:-

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i)  major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial reporting;
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regarding (B)(a) above:-

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with the Company’s Board and senior management
and the Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

(i)  the Committee should consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the report and accounts, it should give due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures

(@)

to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal control and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have an effective internal control system. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any material queries raised by the auditors to
management about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s

response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues raised in the external auditors’
management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in the Code Provisions in the Listing Rules;
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(1)

D)

(k)

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The Committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of these matters
and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the external
auditors; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Oversight of the Company’s Corporate Governance Matters

(@)

(€

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 is summarised below:

(@)

(b)

approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;

review of the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

review of the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, with particular
consideration of the points mentioned in paragraph (i)(B) above regarding the duties of the Audit Committee;
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(d)  discussion with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit;

(e) review of the audit programme and co-ordination between the external auditor and the internal audit
function;

() review of the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; and

(@ meeting with the external auditor.

(G)AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to services for the financial year ended 31 March 2012, all related to the audit and taxation, provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company, amounted to HK$1.2 million and HK$0.2 million respectively.

(H)INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the internal control system of the Group and, through the Audit Committee, have
reviewed the effectiveness of the system. The internal control system comprises a well-defined organisational structure with
specified limits of authority in place. Areas of responsibility of each business and operational units are also clearly defined to
ensure effective checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, maintenance of proper
accounting records, assurance of the reliability of financial information for internal use or publication and compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. Such procedures are designed to manage risks of failure in operational systems and can
provide reasonable assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The internal control function was set up to monitor compliance with policies and standards and the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the whole Group. The internal control function reports to the Audit Committee. A full set of internal
control reports will also be provided to the external auditor.

A review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and procedures covering all controls, including financial,
operational and compliance and risk management, and the adequacy of, inter alia, resources, qualifications, experience and
training of staff of this Company’s accounting and financial reporting function was conducted by the Audit Committee and
subsequently reported to the Board during the financial year ended 31 March 2012. Based on the result of the review, in
respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Directors considered that the internal control system and procedures
of the Group were effective and adequate.
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() DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2012, which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash
flows for the year then ended and in compliance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.

In preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2012:

(i) appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards;

(ii) prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates are made; and

(iii) the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards are stated, if applicable.

(J) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

32

A Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted by the Company on 26 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information about the Company (including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community to
engage actively with the Company.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its
performances and activities. Annual and interim reports are published/printed and sent to all Shareholders. Such

reports and press releases are posted and are available for download at the Company’s corporate website
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/joyce/index.htm. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also contains a wide
range of additional information on the Group’s business activities. As a standard part of the investor relations programme to
maintain a constant dialogue on the Group’s performance and objectives, senior executives hold regular briefings and attend
conferences with institutional investors and financial analysts.

The Company encourages its Shareholders to attend Annual General Meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and for
Shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals.

The Board and external auditor attend the Annual General Meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



(K) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

() Convene a Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, on requisition of one or more Shareholders in aggregate holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings, the Directors of the Company
must convene a special general meeting.

(I) Send Enquiries to the Board
The Company’s corporate website provides email address, postal address, fax number and telephone number by which
Shareholders may at any time address their concerns or enquiries to the Company’s Board.

(11) Make Proposals at General Meetings
(i)  The procedures for proposing candidate(s) for election as Director(s) at a Shareholders’ meeting are set out in the
Corporate Governance section of the Company’s corporate website.

(i) The procedures for proposing resolution(s) to be moved at a Shareholders’ meeting are as follows:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at a Shareholders’ meeting pursuant to
Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 if they —

(@)

(b)

represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the Shareholders’ meeting; or

are no less than 100 Shareholders holding the Company’s shares.

The written requisition must —

(1)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012

contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form);

be deposited at the Company’s registered office in Bermuda (Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda) and its principal office in Hong Kong (26/F, One Island South, 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong
Chuk Hang, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks (as required in
most circumstances under the applicable laws) before the Shareholders’ meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week before the Shareholders’ meeting in the case of any
other requisition; and

be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitions to all Shareholders in
accordance with the requirements under the applicable laws and rules.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND TRADING OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services to Group companies and
those of its principal subsidiaries are set out on page 136.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group and appropriations of profits for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in the Consolidated
Income Statement on page 75.

Movements in reserves during the financial year are set out in Note 25 to the Financial Statements on pages 129 and 130.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 5.0 cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012, payable on
Tuesday, 4 September 2012 to Shareholders on record as at 30 August 2012. This interim dividend is to be paid in lieu of a final
dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the financial year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements on pages
119 and 120.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year were Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng, Mr. Antonio Chan, Ms. Doreen VY. F. Lee,
Mr. Eric F. C. Li, Mr. Eric K. K. Lo and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all Directors will retire from the Board at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. None of the retiring Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012
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Report of the Directors

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its holding
company or any subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during that financial year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its holding company or any subsidiary of that
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the
financial year.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements now presented have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, who retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Wilson W. S. Chan
Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 June 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 136, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial

position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

mElER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HEZO—Z—HF=A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—O—=% ZO—*%

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

BaE BEET T BT
Turnover e 5 1,324,046 1,147,731
Other income E A 6 17,575 14,589
Direct costs and operating expenses BEEAAREFEER 7 (1,006,751) (860,655)
Selling and marketing expenses SHERIEHEER 7 (71,271) (57,042)
Administrative expenses THEA 7 (93,457) (86,867)
Other losses Hin &5 8 (1,788) (4,194)
Operating profit EERF 168,354 153,562
Finance costs REE R AR 9 (53) (34)
Share of profit of an associate PGB & AR & F 19 6,964 5,836
Profit before income tax HBRET1S BRI & A 175,265 159,364
Income tax expense kST R3] 11 (24,147) (26,712)
Profit attributable to equity holders ARERFHEAELERT

of the Company 12 151,118 132,652

Dividends A& 13 5.0 cents 4.0 cents
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic and diluted —HEARREE 14 9.3 cents 8.2 cents
The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements. A5 84 & 135 B 2 it AR A MISIRET M EEREED -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mAaZmEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HEZO—ZHF=A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011

—O—=% ZO—*%

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BEET T BT T

Profit for the year FERARN 151,118 132,652

Other comprehensive income: HiiR e Was

Net translation differences on foreign operations TBINEIE 2 [E S ERR 2,668 3,385

Fair value gains on cash flow hedge, net of tax REiE 2R RBEH 2 AT EWE 1,625 2,368

Total other comprehensive income Hitimm e s 4,293 5,753
Total comprehensive income attributable FRGZEHE W

to equity holders of the Company 155,411 138,405

The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements. A% 84 & 135 B » Mt A4 A M5 MR ELEE ) -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRE

As at 31 March 2012
RZO——FZA=+—HLHFE

2012 2011
—O0—=% ZO—*%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE BEET T BETFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B REE 15 99,774 44,469
Deposits, prepayments and other assets Al ENEAREMEE 16 60,196 39,654
Interest in an associate REE R R RS 19 19,251 17,369
Deferred income tax assets FREFTISTHEE 26 9,959 4,281
189,180 105,773
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 262,303 194,104
Trade and other receivables B 5 NhEAEIERTE 18 33,745 39,754
Deposits, prepayments and other assets Al BNEBRAMEMEE 16 26,672 19,843
Financial derivative assets PTESRTAEEE 21 2,059 892
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE&EEER 22 495,429 479,753
820,208 734,346
Total assets EERE 1,009,388 840,119

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRRE
2012 2011
—O—=%& —O—*%
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BRE BET T BT T
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable ATERZEAEN
to the Company’s equity holders BAR #E
Share capital A& A 24 162,400 162,400
Reserves (G 25 555,306 464,855
Total equity R 717,706 627,255
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liability FREBEME
Financial liability at fair value BAHES REmE IR
through profit or loss HERmAaE 20 9,948 8,160
Current liabilities ok h=Ri
Trade and bills payables e B SERE KR R R 23 68,613 52,363
Other payables and accruals HAtb eI BRIE R FERTIE B 192,275 122,406
Amount due to an associate FETE A B FIAR 19 3,472 3,113
Current income tax liabilities KEFFEHAaE 17,374 26,822
281,734 204,704
Total liabilities p=Fifct 291,682 212,864
Total equity and liabilities EnkAEAEE 1,009,388 840,119
Net current assets REBEEFE 538,474 529,642
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABEE 727,654 635,415

Stephen T. H. NG
Chairman

RXE

FE

The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Director
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Company Statement of Financial Position

DR R

As at 31 March 2012
RZO—Z—F=RA=+—HItFE

2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE BEET T BT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E =Y 15 1,097 1,943
Interests in subsidiaries Pk B B A R 17 132,882 132,882
Deposits, prepayments and other assets Al BNEBRAMEMEE 16 3,573 -
Deferred income tax assets REFTISTHEE 26 5,740 -
143,292 134,825
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other assets e ENEAREMEE 16 630 299
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI E e 17 403,998 366,777
Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS FMEEE 22 877 1,148
405,505 368,224
Total assets EEHAT 548,797 503,049
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ARIEREEAEL
to the Company’s equity holders AR #E
Share capital A& 24 162,400 162,400
Reserves it 25 304,072 263,802
466,472 426,202
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals HAtb eI BRIE R FERTIE B 19,273 13,795
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBR S A Rk IE 17 63,052 63,052
Total liabilities BEHE 82,325 76,847
Total equity and liabilities BaRkEEREE 548,797 503,049
Net current assets REBEEFRE 323,180 291,377
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBAE 466,472 426,202
Stephen T. H. NG Paul Y. C. TSUI
Chairman Director
RRE ®mEe
E EZE
The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements. #0584 £ 135 A 2 T RiRE WIS MR B M -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HEZO—ZHF=A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARBREEARL
Exchange
fluctuation
Share Share  Capital Contributed ~ reserve  Hedging  Retained
capital premium  surplus  surplus EX  reserve profits Total
BE ROBE ERBH HARS KBRE WORE REEA ]
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
&8 Mgk BT E%Tr A%Tr BETn BETn BT BT E%Tr
Balance at 1 April 2011 ZO——4mA-RER 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 1,523 (147) 320479 627,255
Comprehensive income FahE
Proft attrioutable to ERREAEGET
equity holders - - - - - - 151,118 151,118
Other comprehensive Hrirai /(%)
income/(expense)
Net transiation differences BNEE B FEE
on foreign operations:
- Subsidiaries —~HBLE - - - - 2,654 - - 2,654
— Associate =N - - - - 14 - - 14
Cash flow hedges: Bengdn
—Fair value gains for the year ~-FEENATEEKR - - - - - 1817 - 1817
- Deferred income tax recognised ~BRERLFEH 26 - - - - - (192) - (192)
Total other comprehensive el
income - - - - 2,668 1,625 - 4,293
Total comprehensive Gelks
income - - - - 2,668 1625 151,118 155411
Transactions with HERBEENRS
owners
Dividend paid for the year #=0——%=R=+-H
ended 31 March 2011 IHFEZENRERE - - - - - - (64,960)  (64,960)
Balance at 31 March 2012 Z0—Z#=A=t-RH&RF 162,400 3,728 76 139,19 4,191 1478 406637 717,706

The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAEERA B

Exchange
fluctuation
Share Share Capital Contributed reserve  Hedging  Retained
capital  premium  surplus surplus R resene profits Total
BA RiVRE EAZ% SARS HBREE HAEE  ZEEA ]
Note HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$O00  HK$'000  HKE000  HK$'000
£ iE3 BETT BT A%Tr BT A%t BETn B%Tr AT
Balance at 1 April 2010 —0-OFmA—R&R 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 (1,862) (2,515) 204,067 505,090
Comprehensive income GelE
Profit attributable to equity Bt A AR
holders - - - - - - 132,662 132,652
Other comprehensive HthiralE /()
income/(expense)
Net translation differences BNEBENFEE
on foreign operations:
- Subsidlaries -MEAF - - - - 3,167 - - 3,167
- Associate ~BEAT - - - - 218 - - 218
Cash flow hedges: REmHEM -
— Fair value gains for the year -REENATEENKE - - - - - 3,402 - 3,402
- Deferred income tax recognised ~BRMELEMEH 26 - - - - - (1034 - (1034
Total other comprehensive HivGaBlE
income - - - - 3,385 2,368 - 5,753
Total comprehensive income GafBkR - - - - 3,385 2,368 132,652 138,405
Transactions with owners RREEREENRS
Dividend paid for the year $#-0—-0F=f=1-H
ended 31 March 2010 IFERZERREBRE - - - - - - (16,240)  (16,240)
Balance at 31 March 2011 —O——f=ZfA=+-B#RE 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 1,523 (147) 320,479 627,255

The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HEZO—ZHF=A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—O—=% ZO—*%
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BaE BEET T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNREARE
Cash generated from operations EEEANRE (@) 196,759 229,179
Interest paid EATHLE (53) (34)
Interest received BUF B 1,232 989
Income tax paid BEAATISH (39,465) (11,134)
Net cash generated from operating activities EREEHEENFRE 158,473 219,000
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEMXE  BEMEE (82,530) (41,141)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment RABFTISRIA 74 -
Dividend income from an associate Bt Qa2 IR BURA 5,096 -
Net cash used in investing activities WEESMAFRE (77,360) (41,141)
Cash flows from financing activity METBNRERE
Dividend paid BERE (64,960) (16,240)
Net cash used in financing activity BB FTEIR S (64,960) (16,240)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents BHeRBESEEBEEEM 16,153 161,619
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PE 3R FRR 477) 2,827
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RFE#ZHEMIRESEEER 479,753 315,307
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year REXRZRERBELZEEE 495,429 479,753
Analysis of balances of cash ReRBELEEEE
and cash equivalents “EEIM
Cash at bank and in hand RITREFR® 22 166,226 169,912
Short-term bank deposits RHIRTTIE K 22 329,203 309,841
495,429 479,753

The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

REReRERME

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a) EEBFEEZITHFELENBESHER
operations
2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Operating profit EERR 168,354 153,562
Interest income FEMA (1,232) (989)
Depreciation of property, Y - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 30,335 24,187
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMRE
plant and equipment 2 (&N),/EiE (53) 83
Fair value loss on financial liability BAHESE R
at fair value through profit or loss MemBEs A HEREE 1,788 4,194
Operating profit before working LBEE SRR 2 EERN
capital changes 199,192 181,037
Increase in inventories FEziEgnm (67,549) (4,534)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R EAFEWERIE 2 5 6,009 10,190
Increase in deposits, HERS N E- 9304
prepayments and other assets HAv&ZE 2 1E 00 (27,371) (3,831)
Increase in trade and bills payables JEI B SR KR B iR 2 35 16,250 10,923
Increase in other payables and accruals HAb e RRIE R FERTIEE 2 1800 69,869 19,571
Increase in amount due to an associate JE - B & R R RIE 2 35 00 359 15,823
Cash generated from operations BEELNRG 196,759 229,179

The notes on pages 84 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHERME

84

GENERAL INFORMATION

Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the sales of designer
fashion garments, cosmetics and accessories.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HMI12, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The assumptions and estimates that are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (A~2A&]) Kz E Bt
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M= BRI Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda ° A A RMIEH R &S
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new, revised/amended standards and
interpretations are effective for the accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2011, but they are not relevant to the Group’s
operations.

HKAS 24 (revised) Related party disclosures

HKFRS 1 (@amendment)  Limited exemption from comparative
HKFRS 7 disclosure for first-time

adopters

HK(FRIC)-Int 14
(@mendment)

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments

Annual improvements
project

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

The adoption of the above new, revised/amended standards
and interpretations have no significant impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.

The following new, revised/amended standards and
interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2012
or later periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 1 (@amendment)

HKFRS 7 (amendment)

HKFRS 7 (amendment)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 1 (amendment)

HKAS 12 (@amendment)
HKAS 19 (amendment)
HKAS 27 (revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (revised 2011)

HKAS 32 (@amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

Severe hyperinflation and removal of
fixed dates for first-time adopters

Disclosures — transfers of financial
assets

Financial instruments: Disclosures-
offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Mandatory effective date and
transition disclosures

Financial instruments

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosures of interests in other
entities

Fair value measurement

Presentation of financial statements
on other comprehensive income

Deferred tax: recovery of underlying
assets

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Associates and joint ventures

Financial instruments: presentation
- offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of the new, revised/amended standards and
interpretations upon initial application. So far, except for

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments’

’, it has concluded that the

new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
are unlikely to have significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial positions.

86

2 FREREE)

2.1

RBEAE(E)
BEMBREERE 15 (BEK)

BEMBRSENE TR (BIAK)

EEMBREENE TS (BFIK)

RERUMRRLIGE
REE e R
RE-EYeREE

TRIE BE-

SHAEHSHERE
k% -
BENBREENETRREE BHERAAREE
HBREEE IR (BITR) G
BRNBREENE R $RMIA
BENBREENE 105 FemBaR
RENBREENE 1R e
RENBREENE 125 BELEMERNER
BAYBREENZ 1357 RnBEEE
BAGHRENE 1R (BIA) BEEMGEKE
HBREIER
EBGHERE 125 (BT EERE- e
HEEE
BEEFERF 195 (B3 8) EERT
EASHENFR(Z0——%) BuHHER
ERHENEBRH(Z0—F) HEHERFANGE
JHEMRE
BEGIHERE 2K (BT K) SRIA: 25—
CHEERSHAR
ki
B (ARIBREREREE) BABANEERR
~REER ZHRAR
REBE R FTR] AT 85T E'J . ﬁﬁ‘;&
AR EET 2B EARNRE - f‘ﬂk
BB WEERE 95 rﬁwﬂl/ﬂ\l 9|\ '
ERFT A SIS TR fﬁﬁ\;’i,ﬁ'lﬁ’]fk.ﬂ&

%%%EKKTE‘%%TZKEE’J

SEK R ERE

S SIS EUR VN

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and revised
in October 2010. It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate
to the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and
those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS 39
requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the
fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in

other comprehensive income rather than the income statement,

unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The Group is yet
to assess HKFRS 9’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS
9 upon its effective date, which is for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

(a) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHERME

2

88

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. The financial
statements of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,

the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income statement. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes

of subsequently accounting for the retained interest

as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

(Continued)
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement where appropriate.

2.3 Associate
Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and is initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves

is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

in the associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. The financial statements of associate have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

2.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers. The chief operating decision-makers, who are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, have been identified collectively as
the top management that makes strategic decisions.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and

losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive

income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial

position presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as

a separate component of equity.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the costs of items of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Over the lease term
3 to 6 years
4 years

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associate and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets

are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged. Derivatives that are not designated as
hedging instruments are classified as financial assets or liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of highly
probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedge). The Group
documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as

its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
(Continued)

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging
purposes are disclosed in Note 21. Movements on the hedging
reserve in other comprehensive income are shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The full fair value
of hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedge item is more
than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

The effective portion of changes in the fair values of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
recognised in hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in hedging reserve are recycled in

the consolidated income statement in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss. However, when the forecast
transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset (for example, inventory), the gains and losses
previously deferred in hedging reserve are transferred from
hedging reserve and included in the initial measurement of
the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately
recognised in cost of inventories in case of inventory.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a

hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in hedging reserve at that time
remains in hedging reserve and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occeur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in hedging
reserve is immediately transferred to the consolidated income
statement.

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

29

2.10

2.11

212

2.13

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on
a weighted average basis and includes all costs of purchases,
costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Costs of inventories include the transfer from hedging reserve
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to
purchases of merchandises for resale.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision

for impairment of receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised

in the consolidated income statement. When a receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account

for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturity of 3 months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Payables
Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.14 Current and deferred income tax

2.15

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income or equity. In this case, tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of

the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date

of statement of financial position in the countries where the
Company, its subsidiaries and associate operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provision are not recognised for future operating losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements (a)
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised

when they accrue to employees. A provision is made

for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result

of services rendered by employees up to the date of

statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plan (b)
Provision for bonus plan is recognised where contractually

obliged or where there is a past practice that has created

a constructive obligation.

Pension schemes (c)
The Group operates the following principal defined
contribution pension schemes:

Occupational retirement schemes

Contributions to the schemes are expensed as incurred
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Mandatory provident funds

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are charged to the consolidated
income statement when incurred.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension schemes (Continued)
Others

The Group also participates in the employee pension
schemes operated by the municipal governments of
various cities in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
The municipal governments are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees. The
only obligation of the Group is to pay the ongoing required
contribution under these schemes. The contributions

are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to make further payment once the required
contributions have been paid. Contributions to these
plans are expensed as incurred.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts payable
on cessation of employment in certain circumstances
under the employment law of the respective countries in
which the Group operates is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their services in
the current and prior periods.

Long service payments are assessed using the projected
unit credit method. The cost of providing the long service
payment liabilities is charged to the consolidated income
statement so as to spread the cost over the service

lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the
actuaries.

Long service payments are discounted to determine the
present value of obligation and reduced by entitlement
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the

Group. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised over
the average remaining service lives of employees. Past
service costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-

added tax, returns, rebates, discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group company
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually
settled in cash or by credit card.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers
are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods
sold and the award credits granted. The consideration
allocated to the award credits is measured by reference
to their fair values, taking into the account the fair value of
the products for which award credits could be redeemed.
Such consideration is not recognised as revenue at the
time of the initial sale transaction, but is deferred and
recognised as revenue upon the expiration or redemption
of award credits.

Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a group company
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line accrual
basis over the terms of lease agreement.

Management fee and commission income
Management fee and commission income is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

2 FEEHBEER(EZ)
217 AR
WS E A EERS EBBRER HEER

RISHE YRR EN R
BRIBED - &

FE o e
B mIATH AR S

B AR HERTIRR -

(a

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Em#E - &
ERHEEASERRABETHEE
E&%%°2%ﬁ%*%%ﬁ%i%
ﬁH—F/D/

REmHEmELR P REED K
AEUBEZEHEENRZIARK B
Wﬁ@%ﬂ@%“?ﬁ@ﬁa%%“
A M PR T 60 SRR 0 2 ) 0 2
BlaBEY 2 HET2RER $@
REBZREBESAIHBEZERNA
FEFGE - DBGREBRES 2HE
EERHERX BN SEAB/EA -
WEBEEARR - EREEDBHHL
RSHER SN -

EmiseE - ##%
ERHEEARBERREREMRR
THE BEERWEMER UEEH
JEWC TR H U (2 R] A 32 Bl (R By R

AEWMA
FB AT P R L 5 PR 2
TR -

HERA
MEWATHREREHEEEES
FIEAHER o

EEERAE KA

BB NS WA TEIR HIRIEIF 7%
S EAREER -

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives paid to lessee or received from the lessor) are
recognised as income or expense in the consolidated income
statement on the straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s directors or shareholders.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it mainly to foreign exchange

risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC,
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the
Euro dollars (“Euro”) and United States dollars (“USD”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

Exposure to movements in exchange rates on individual
transactions of the Group denominated in Euro is
minimised using forward foreign exchange contracts
where active markets exist.

The Group’s risk management policy is to hedge all highly
probable transactions in Euro, provided that the cost of
the foreign exchange forward or derivative contract is not
prohibitively expensive in comparison to the underlying
exposure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FREMBHRRME
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SHRRERZE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SmEERRZEE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SEEEE)

100

(i)

As the Group has hedged against Euro for Hong Kong
entities for both years, the Group is exposed to minimal
foreign exchange risk between Euro and HK$.

At 31 March 2012, if Euro had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against Reminbi with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have

been approximately HK$567,000 higher/lower (2011:
HK$214,000 higher/lower) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on settlement of purchases of
PRC entities.

The Group considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between HK$ and USD to be insignificant as HK$
and USD are pegged and hence, foreign currency risk is
considered insignificant.

Credit risk (ii)
The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk

that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full

when due. Credit risk is managed on a group basis and

individual basis. Credit risk arises mainly from deposits

with banks, rental deposits, as well as credit exposures

to wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding

receivables.

Impairment provisions are made for losses that have been
incurred at the date of statement of financial position.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously
selecting the counterparties including the deposits-
takers and debtors and by diversification. Deposits are
placed only with major and sizeable banks approved by
the Board from time to time and there was no significant
concentration risk to a single counterparty. The Group
mitigates its exposure to risks relating to trade receivable
by its established procedures in granting credit only to
customers with sound credit track records. Sales to

retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit
cards. No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SREREEE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SEERRZEE)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1SEmEE(E)
As at 31 March 2012, the financial assets of the Group RZO—=—F=ZA=+—H A%£H
that were exposed to credit risk and their maximum BAZEERB M EEREBE
exposure were as follows: BEEZZeRARIAT :
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
—O—=%=ZA=+—8 —O—%=A=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount in amount in
statement of Maximum statement of Maximum
financial exposure to financial  exposure to
position credit risk position credit risk

REBBRRET BEZZES REBRIR AAXZES
ZAREE FERR ZIRHEE EERR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT

Financial assets: I EE

Cash and cash equivalents Re MRe&EEAEE 495,429 494,620 479,753 479,124
Trade and other receivables & 5 N E fib FEULBRTE 33,745 33,745 39,754 39,754
Financial derivative assets PTESMTAEE 2,059 2,059 892 892
Deposits and other assets e MhEMEE 79,180 79,180 57,681 57,681

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012 101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

102

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to
meset liabilities as and when they fall due, and it results
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and
liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. The Group employs
projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring
the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements could be met.

In addition, banking facilities have been put in place

for contingency purposes. The Group had aggregate
borrowing facilities of approximately HK$279,800,000 as
at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$279,800,000). Borrowing
facilities utilised as at 31 March 2012 amounted to
approximately HK$20,018,000 (2011: HK$24,722,000).
The banking facilities were secured by corporate
guarantees from the Company.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
which have contractual maturities less than 1 year.

3

SRREEE (&)
31 cEEREEE)
(i) FHEELEE
TEE AR AL REENHIE
BrRR BEERBEZEER

FHELEMY - BRERDESRRE
EBEE#FEHNES  ARENE
FHREEREHETANES - REE
NERMISGEN - NEEF AR
EROMEREERRE - XA
FIEReHEREEASE EEE
& UEREEEMBDHEENE
MESF R N RITEEEE
HBEABE - R-_O——-F=A
=t+—B AEEZAHAEELE
A 279,800,0007T (—O——4 :
71 279,800,0007T) e R=O— =4
—A=+—H BEAMNEELEY
578 #20,018,000L( —O——4 :
HK$24,722,000) » IR1TEE A AR
A2 R EERIERE ©

TRETTAEEANIHMBE R —FIA
THEBAE -

Less than 1 year

—FEUT
2012 2011
—O—=%&§ —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Trade and bills payable JEN B SR R ENRIE 68,613 52,363
Other payables and accruals H P ERIE R FERTIE B 178,850 109,139
Amount due to an associate FETE AR FRIA 3,472 3,113
Total 4z 250,935 164,615
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SREREEE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 SEERRZEE)
(iij)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEELEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s derivative financial TRAEATAEFESYINEHAR B —FIA
instruments which have contractual maturities less TETAESETE - MEEHREE
than 1 year. The gross settlement contracts require ZEHMEZ A TBEBRESRAR T
undiscounted contractual cash inflows and outflows as o
follows:
Less than
1 year
—FLUT
HK$’000
BT T
At 31 March 2012 ZO—=fF=A=+—H
Forward foreign exchange RARHNE S A
contracts — cash flow hedges -BEREBEH :
Inflows mA 95,533
Outflows il (93,123)
At 31 March 2011 —O—%=A=+—H
Forward foreign exchange RARSNE S A
contracts — cash flow hedges -BEREEF
Inflows mA 13,548
Outflows pigs (12,617)
(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk (iv) ELHEFEELE
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash RemENERBRABETIZHEEH)
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of MEREeMIEZ KRB MEY
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s income Z R o BRIRBIRITFRZ FEWA
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of Gh o REBZIWAREER S RERN
changes in market interest rates, except for the interest BMAZmsNEEeTE - £-0
income derived from bank deposits. As at 31 March ——F=ZA=+—8 BRERTER
2012, if interest rates on the bank deposits had been 10 FlREH, KT 10E2E - MATEEA
basis points (2011: 10 basis points) higher/lower with HEEFAIE - AZFENRTANR
all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the FIFERE N7 7 495,000 (= O
year would have been HK$495,000 (2011: HK$479,000) ——4F  BHEA479,0007T) C TEREA
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest RITIFERF BURAZIE N, R o B
income on bank deposits. Apart from the bank deposits, RITHERIN  AEEWEERE TR
the Group has no significant interest bearing assets or BEXBE-
liabilities.
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FREMBHRRMET
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SHRRERZE)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EsERERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard ZIS’E EMNESEERIR  RRESERES

104

3.3

the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

3.3

defined as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

C ARBCRIEH BN AR MRS
/\kf,\ﬂﬁﬁ * (RIS () B 2518 AR
BEZHA

$EIF$TTEHH*§EET&ME¥§$W% 13k
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EP C REBEEENREE - AEEHEHN
BARBREERRE - ERI IR Z 2H5E
N BHZzEERER  BHEAHX KA
HIRERERES -

BTHSIHEENER  AEBEEEH
EXNTEROBREDHE  MBREEZE
T BITHRHHEEE -
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TREBEEEHEATEIEZ SRTA

LT o ARFHIFERT

F-E- HREERRBEEIREGED
BH)RE CREHE)
BTE-EMBRENORESN
ZEEMABEMNAIBRNEMD
WA AAERBIFIMER)
k% (AR B E1%)
FZE- BEIABEIFKREABE
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SHMERREEZ)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AV EMF(E)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and TRERKNEBENMBEEREER=-O
liabilities that were measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012. ——F=ZA=t+—Bi=mAaFE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B F=E FEE-C)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T BEET T BT T
Assets BE
Financial derivative assets ESMTIABEE - 2,059 - 2,059
Liabilities afE
Financial liability at fair value AT ESRBIETS
through profit or loss REMNERIBE - - 9,948 9,948
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and TRETAEENTBAGEE_O—F=
liabilities that were measured at fair value as at 31 March 2011. A=+—REMQFE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E F B F=E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT BT
Assets BE
Financial derivative assets ESMTABRE - 892 - 892
Liabilities afE
Financial liability at fair value BAFESRBIBT
through profit or loss REMNERIBE - - 8,160 8,160

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market are determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMEIRRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial liabilities

include:

(i) The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts
were determined using forward exchange rates at the
date of statement of financial position, with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

(i) Binomial model was adopted to measure the net fair
values of the call and put options which required the
assessment of the fair market values of the equity interest
of Marni (Hong Kong) Limited. Fair market values of
the equity interest of Marni (Hong Kong) Limited was
determined by the income approach with the use of free
cash flows to equity in discounted cash flow method.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including

cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and

deposits and other assets; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals
and amount due to an associate, approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment exhibit any indications of impairment. If so, the
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-in-use
calculation. The value-in-use calculation involves estimating the
future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing
use of the asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash flows
and selection of discount rate require the use of judgments
and estimates. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key elements in the
value-in-use calculation would not result in material additional
impairment charges.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Provision
for inventories is recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying cost of inventories will
not be fully realised. The quantification of inventory provisions
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
outcomes are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and
provisions for inventories in the years in which such estimates
have been changed.
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mEMBHERME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value of financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss
The fair value of a financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss that is not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis
and option pricing models. The fair value derived from these
valuation techniques is based on a number of assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the fair value
determined and the amount recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in sales of designer fashion
garments, cosmetics and accessories. Turnover recognised during the
year are as follows:

@t RV ()
(d) BRAFEZBEZEENEBEBEZATE

RAERRMSEENR AT ERBERSC
EnEBAEzAFE  SARGERNE
E o PIBERR S REN TR EER
A FAZFHERTAEENAFESE
RIBZERERAG - EARROEZEGER
FENETE R F B RS AR e WERR
=

ExGRoBEH
AEBETBENERMEE  (bhmREMHHE -
FREKBERAMOT -

2012 2011

—O—=%&§ —O—*%

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEET T BT

Sale of goods EmiEE 1,324,046 1,147,731

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the management who makes strategic decisions.

The management assesses the business by a geographical location.
The reportable operating segments identified are Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other markets.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment before
finance cost, tax and share of profit of an associate. This is the
measurement basis reported to the management for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ﬁ‘iﬁ&ﬁ‘ﬁiﬁ(f‘g)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment turnover and operating U AREBERFRNIRMIE D EmMEI D EEER
profit/(loss) by geographical location is as follows: ’\*Béﬂ AATFIEAT
2012
—O0O—=—%
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
BB B Hits R

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T BT T BT T

Turnover e 1,122,372 201,240 434 1,324,046
Operating profit/(loss) EERF(EE) 180,957 (9,749) (2,854) 168,354
Finance costs REE R AR (53)
Share of profit of an associate B2 AR & F 6,964
Profit before income tax BrE B &R 175,265
Income tax expense s &R (24,147)
Profit attributable to equity holders REFE ARREF 151,118
Other segment information H{ P EBE K
Segment capital expenditures D ERE AR S 19,669 62,861 - 82,530
Segment depreciation of property, DEME - HE

plant and equipment MBI E 20,294 10,041 - 30,335
The management manages the assets from geographic location ERBNMR BERERBDMEE - BAAMS
perspective. Assets of reportable segments exclude interest in an NHENEETE ﬁ-f R R 0D R /N R O
associate and deferred income tax assets, of which are managed on a o RS A RIRIERRIEFRSHEE - 6
central basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude amount due to BESHMEE T”j R E A RIRIE R
an associate, deferred and current income tax liabilities. RARHAPTIS T EIA
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mEMBHRRME
5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ﬁ#ﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁﬂ (%)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment assets by geographical W AREBEF NI D MEI DB REERE
location is as follows: “*BQEJH LaAT
2012
—O—=—#
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
BE i Hith sz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BEET T BEET T
Segment assets PDEBEE 802,504 177,035 639 980,178
Unallocated: APBLEE
Interest in an associate E’\Hﬁf%ﬁ* NSEOL 2 19,251
Deferred income tax assets TSI EE 9,959
Total assets BERE 1,009,388

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment liabilities by B AREBZENIRMIG D LMEI DN BEBERE
geographical location is as follows: DEaBEIERAT
2012
—O0O—=—#&F
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
BB s Hity FEEC)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BETT BT T

Segment liabilities DEPEE 164,822 105,423 591 270,836
Unallocated: KofcafE :

Amount due to an associate FEATH A R)FRIAE 3,472
Current income tax liabilities AEFTSTR & TE 17,374
Total liabilities BEERE 291,682
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 BEERSBEHE)
Analysis of the Group’s reportable segment turnover and operating LA EEZO——FAKRMIE S I ME D HE
profit/(loss) by geographical location is as follows: FBERDHBERSIFMAT ¢
2011
—O—%F
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
B A HAb 4eEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
BT R T T BT
Turnover e 1,012,550 134,749 432 1,147,731
Operating profit/(loss) EERF(EE) 141,644 14,468 (2,550) 153,562
Finance costs BhE P AN (34)
Share of profit of an associate Pt e A &) 2 F) 5,836
Profit before income tax R Al 2 A 159,364
Income tax expense kST R3] (26,712)
Profit attributable to equity holders RBERHE ARERR 132,652
Other segment information H 5 #BE K
Segment capital expenditures DEE R 31,156 9,985 - 41,141
Segment depreciation of property, DEWME - WE
plant and equipment NG EIN 23,419 768 - 24,187
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e BHERME

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 EXTRSWBEHE)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment assets by geographical BEAEE —_O——F AR S HTMEHNE
location is as follows: ARG HEESMIT
2011
—O——*%F
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
% H Hith k)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BETFIT
Segment assets NEEE 715,347 102,492 630 818,469
Unallocated: APBLEE
Interest in an associate E’%Hﬁ?% NGI[EoL £ 17,369
Deferred income tax assets FREFTSTHEE 4,281
Total assets BERE 840,119

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment liabilities by

BEAEE _—_O——FRIRMA DA MBI DA

geographical location is as follows: FAmE S AEMmET
2011
—O——*%F
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
BB oy Hith Flk)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT
Segment liabilities DEPEE 152,455 29,850 624 182,929
Unallocated: KoL EE :

Amount due to an associate R a/NCIE 3,113
Current income tax liabilities AEPFRBH A TEI 26,822
Total liabilities afEes 212,864
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hehlk A
2012 2011
—O—=%# —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Interest income FBULA 1,232 989
Management fee income B RISWA 2,093 2,169
Consignment commission ZiEAe 1,411 1,894
Rental income A2 BA 12,076 8,592
Sample and sundry sales S N ETRSEE 763 945
17,575 14,589
7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BHER
2012 2011
—O—=%# —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Cost of inventories (including provision FERAN (BRIEFERE)
for inventories) 608,300 517,421
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - HiE &R EITE 30,335 24,187
Operating lease rentals in respect T REFELHERES
of land and buildings
— minimum lease payments — &SN 196,833 170,829
— contingent rents —s RS 47,910 32,873
Auditor’s remuneration % EREM B & 1,159 1,000
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMRE
plant and equipment (&), kB (53) 83
Net exchange (gains)/losses N (&), EBFE (6,650) 502
Staff costs (including directors’ RSN
remuneration (Note 10)) (BREESEHE —KIEE10)
Wages and salaries TE& RFH M 157,393 147,374
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKE KA —FE
schemes HIRET S 7,453 6,044
164,846 153,418
Other expenses HEhBA 128,799 104,251
1,171,479 1,004,564
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e KRR
8 OTHER LOSSES 8 HtiEE
2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Fair value loss on financial liability at fair value 1R AP EFEBERTENESREE
through profit or loss (Note 20) 2 A HEEE (K15E20) 1,788 4,194
9 FINANCE COSTS 9 MERE
2012 2011
—O0—=% Z—O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts IRITERBEZ B E 53 34
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10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10 EFREREEARMNS

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EM&
The emoluments of every director for the year ended 31 March BE-_O——#=A=+—HIIFERE=E
2012 are set out below: EWNSEFHIAT ¢
Discretionary
bonuses
and/or
Salaries, performance-
allowances related Pension
and benefits bonuses scheme
inkind @MK= contributions 2012 Total 2011 Total
Name of Director Fee ¢ ERER REEMT BHhke¢ =O-=f —O0——%&
EEER e ENEF oprAAN BE- k] kA
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI T BT T BT T BRI BETT
Mr. Antonio Chan* BRBEEE - 45 - - 45 45
# An independent non-executive director # BAIERITES
Except for the director as disclosed above, no other directors HE-_O—FN-_O—=—F=A=+—8
of the Company received any emoluments for the Group for the IFEE B LR MEEIN - N T
years ended 31 March 2011 and 2012. HhZEFWEEMAB S -
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors of FRARNBENOEEMSEZE S MNT ¢
the Company during the year are as follows:
Group
&£H
2012 2011
—O—=% —O—*%
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BETT BT
Fees e - -
Other emoluments: E M ERE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #i& ~ 284 R EYEF 45 45
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B - -
45 45
45 45
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e BHERME

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

116

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid employees

The five employees whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include no directors (2011: nil),
details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 10(a) above.

10 EEREREEARME (2

IEEaHMES

FNAEGRTMZEELEES(Z0
——F &\ AMeFBEERN L
10(@)c AR (ZO——4F : AR) &b

Emoluments payable to the 5 (2011: 5) highest paid employees EEZMEAT :
during the year are as follows:
Group
2012 2011
—O—=%&§ —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥7& - 285 R E W& 5 7,320 6,861
Discretionary bonuses and/or IEREE R, SR A
performance-related bonuses T MIFEAL 3,684 4,703
Pension scheme contributions IRIREFT B 342 280
11,346 11,844

The emoluments of the highest paid employees fell within the

following bands:

BilfE B 2 Bl& & mlan T

Number of employees

Bands

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

5l

1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 78 7T
1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 78 7T
2,000,001 87T E 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 87T & 3,000,000 78 7T
3,000,001 87T E 3,500,000 78 7T
3,500,001 87T & 4,000,000 78 7T
4,000,001 87T E 4,500,000 78 7T
4,500,001 87T & 5,000,000 78 7T
5,000,001 87T & 5,500,000 78 7T
5,500,001 /870 & 6,000,000 78 7T
6,000,001 /87T & 6,600,000 78 7T

EEAH
2012 2011
—O—=#& —O—*%
- 3
3 1
1 —
5 5
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11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

No provision for overseas profits tax has been made as the Group has
no estimated overseas assessable profit (2011: Nil).

(@  The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

11

FemaR

HEMEHREBAFEE AT R E AR X

16.5% JE R -

AR AR B G SHERBUBINRA - B &
SRBINFEHELEMRE (ZO——F - &) -

(@) WEAWRERAHROTRASER

2012 2011
—O—=f ZO——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T

Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH
— Current income tax - REBFTIS 31,223 26,141
— (Oven/under provision in prior years - AEFEEEN (5) KL (1,206) 559
Deferred income tax (Note 26) RIEFTS B (FisE26) (5,870) 12
24,147 26,712

(b)  The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong

profits tax rate as follows:

b) AEEABELA RN HRERBEERN
SR EMAE IR RN ZRENAT -

2012 2011
—O—=% —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT PSR T
Profit before income tax FRA AT & A 175,265 159,364
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% % 16.5% fi Rzt & 2 B 18
(2011: 16.5%) (ZO——%F : 16.5%) 28,919 26,295
Effect of different taxation rate HABRRTRA=E
in other country 2R (1,156) 907
Effect of share of profit of an associate ~ AT{EE & A R & F 2 & (1,149) (963)
Expenses not deductible for IR g
taxation purpose 494 826
Income not subject to taxation AR Z WA (452) (2,360)
Effect of tax losses unrecognised RERERB BB TE 1,364 2,543
Effect of temporary difference REREE=Er w2
not recognised 2,502 629
Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses of {3 /3 B 4 & K& #E2
previous years 2 ERTAE B (196) (1,866)
Recognition of previously unrecognised &R TR R IER 2 B E =B
temporary differences (5,711) (228)
(Over)/under provision in prior years NEFEREEN(5) /KM (1,206) 559
Others HA 738 370
Income tax expense Frristi & A 24,147 26,712
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mEMBHERME

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
The profit attributable to equity holders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$105,230,000 (2011:
HK$61,909,000).

13 DIVIDENDS
The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011
were approximately HK$64,960,000 and HK$16,240,000 respectively.

12

13

EIRBARERT

BB ARG AEFE%105,230,0007T(= O
——% : B 61,900,0007T) B FF AR R FRIE
A e

;171
BE-_O——FKR-_O—F=ZA=1+—HFE
1FHAR R 3RO AR B Bl K 40 A& 7 K 64,960,000 7T
N 16,240,000 7T °

2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Interim, declared after the date of statement 1 H} * REE BEQHRER S
of financial position, of 5.0 Hong Kong cents ~ — & 3@AX T 5.0l
(2011: 4.0 Hong Kong cents) per (ZO——%F : B 4.01)
ordinary share 81,200 64,960
No final dividend proposed (2011: Nil) TRBRERPKE(ZO——F : ) - -
81,200 64,960

On 29 June 2012, the directors declared an interim dividend of 5.0
Hong Kong cents per ordinary share (2011: 4.0 Hong Kong cents).
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2011 Nil)

The interim dividend declared is not reflected as dividend payable in
these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of
retained profits for the year ended 31 March 2012.

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders for the year of
HK$151,118,000 (2011: HK$132,652,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,624,000,000 (2011: 1,624,000,000)
shares in issue during the year.

As there were no outstanding share options for both years, no diluted
earnings per share was presented.

118

14

EZO—ZHRA-TNA EE/MKEHH
REZBRBRBESOW(ZO——F : BE
401l - EFRFNREEMARPKRE(ZO——
FE) e

SRR E BB L RN AP B RER N E ERE
MR - EE2VNABE_O——F=A=+—
BIEFE 2 REENDE

HERER

BRERBFDIZETFRSITHE AEGRABE
151,118,000 7T ( — O — — 4 : % # 132,652,000
TL) MERFARN—EEE 17/ 1,624,000,000 f% (=
O——% : 1,624,000,000 f% ) & A% hntE F 58
at&E o

HRAAREBE-_O——&ER-0——4%=#

=t+—RIF RAEEETEE TR - Fith
EXdlE=dive: 3 Fpil
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 9% BERRME

Group
5
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements B £E vehicles Total
HENERE PET ] HE ax
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BYETR BT
Year ended 31 March 2011 —O—%=A=t-H
Opening net book value HREFE 14,048 13,157 53 27,258
Additions NE 22,101 18,289 751 41,141
Disposals/write-off HE /i (82) (1) - 83)
Depreciation N (11,951) (12,042) (194) (24,187)
Exchange differences ERER 322 18 - 340
Closing net book value HIRIREFE 24,438 19,421 610 44,469
At 31 March 2011 —O0——%zZf=+-H
Cost AR 78,931 100,609 1,761 181,301
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZEERAE (54,493) (81,188 (1,151) (136,832)
Net book value FEFE 24,438 19,421 610 44,469
Year ended 31 March 2012 —O——%=fA=t-H
Opening net book value BOEEFE 24,438 19,421 610 44,469
Additions NE 66,873 15,657 - 82,530
Disposals/write-off HE /i - 21) - 21)
Depreciation e (18,365) (11,782) (188) (30,335)
Exchange differences ERER 2,831 300 - 3,131
Closing net book value HIRIREFE 75,777 23,575 422 99,774
At 31 March 2012 —O—Z%#zZR=t-H
Cost AR 145,064 109,924 1,220 256,208
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZEHERAE (69,287) (86,349) (798) (156,434)
Net book value ERFE 75,777 23,575 422 99,774

The directors have reviewed the carrying values of assets and no
impairment charge was made against property, plant and equipment
(2011: HKS$NIl). The recoverable amounts of assets were determined
based on the value-in-use of relevant assets estimated by directors as

at 31 March 2012 and 2011.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 B%¥ BER®RMWE(Z)

Company
A

Furniture,
fixtures and

Leasehold equipment
improvements R £E Total
HEWMHERE R&E FEEC)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
Year ended 31 March 2011 —O—%F=ZA=+—H
Opening net book value HEAYRREFE 669 1,341 2,010
Additions NE 402 558 960
Depreciation e (347) (680) (1,027)
Closing net book value HR AR FE 724 1,219 1,043
At 31 March 2011 —O—%F=ZHA=+—H
Cost B 2,594 19,905 22,499
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,870) (18,686) (20,556)
Net book value BREFE 724 1,219 1,943
Year ended 31 March 2012 —O—=—%=A=+—H
Opening net book value HAYIEREFE 724 1,219 1,943
Additions NE 107 318 425
Depreciation e (582) 677) (1,259)
Disposals/write-off &M - (12) (12)
Closing net book value B ERTENFE 249 848 1,097
At 31 March 2012 —O—=—fF=ZA=+—H
Cost PR AR 2,701 17,821 20,522
Accumulated depreciation BEITE (2,452) (16,973) (19,425)
Net book value BREDFE 249 848 1,097
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16 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 16 & - ANEBRAREMEE

Group Company
£E AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—0—=% -—O—% =0—-z=f% —-—O—%#
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BEET T BT

Deposits HisA 78,180 56,111 3,883 -
Prepayments SEANE- 53] 7,688 1,816 316 234
Other assets HihEE 1,000 1,570 4 65
86,368 59,497 4,203 299
Less: Current portion B AREAER (26,672) (19,843) (630) (299)
Non-current portion RHERES S 60,196 39,654 3,573 -
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other assets e ENERLEMEEZEEREEAENTE
approximate their fair values. KRBT -
17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 F{EMBEATES
Company
AT
2012 2011
—O—=%f ZO——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment JE LTI - R ANMENRIRE 132,882 132,882
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, BN TEM B AR ZANEERR R ERRE
and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the balances SKEEF - ARERMEREAFERBURFR -

approximate their fair values.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 are shown on page RZO——FE=A=1+—HBHEITEWBRARIZAE
136. BERDFHINE136E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012 121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 B HRHMEIIRIE
Group
£®

2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT
Trade receivables =3 E 32,817 34,878
Other receivables Hofth pE U BRIE 928 4,876
33,745 39,754

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables with an
ageing analysis at 31 March 2012 as follows:

RZO—ZH=A=+—HHEHRHEMEKE
BB ENE 5 8RIE R 7 20 17 51 40

T
Group

2012 2011
—O—=f —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Within 30 days =+BR 29,537 27,313
Between 31 to 60 days =+—HB&+H 1,861 4,478
Between 61 to 90 days ~t—BENTH 1,419 3,087
Over 90 days N+BUE - -
32,817 34,878
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 HHRHMBEUAIRIE &)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REBEMEWRIBERREEN TEEREMN
denominated in the following currencies:

Group
2012 2011
—O—=%f ZO——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong dollars BT 26,101 26,715
Renminbi AR 6,716 8,163
32,817 34,878
The Group has established credit policies and the general credit terms NEBERENEERE  —RATNEASA
allowed range from 0 to 60 days. TEXNTHAS
Trade receivables that are less than 60 days past due are not BAIL R 60 B E S UG TR BLEERE °
considered impaired. At 31 March 2012, trade receivables of RZO—=—F=ZA=+—H ZEH5EKIFEE
HK$1,419,000 (2011: HK$3,087,000) were past due but not impaired. 1,419,000 7 (= O——4F : ## 3,087,000 7T ) 4%
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there EEHETERE -  WERBIRZERIOLE
is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade MR EFRENBEILRE - LS8 5 EWARAER
receivables is as follows: BT
Group
=
2012 2011
—O—=% ZO—*%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BEET T BT
Between 61 to 90 days NT—HEATH 1,419 3,087
Over 90 days A+BENRE - -
1,419 3,087
Trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and the B RETEWEERNSESSEREERE - £
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value WMEHE EERRNZSRREES FllEFIE
of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not FEWBRTBEM AFE - KREETEET[EAS R
hold any collateral as security. FOHRIR G o
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mEMBHRRME
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 HHRHMEURE &)
Included in trade and other receivables is HK$7,585,000 (2011: BIEEE 5 EIERIEFR 1B 7,5685,0007T (ZO
HK$14,799,000) being amount due from fellow subsidiaries. The ——4F : 715 14,799,00070) B EK R RHTE A
amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable in accordance to the TIFOE o« A VEER . @ B RIEARNEER T
Group’s established credit policies. MEEDBORER -
19 [INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19 REEAFNER
Group
&3
2012 2011
—O—=% —O—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
At 1 April MA—H 17,369 11,315
Share of profit of an associate PGB & AR & F 6,964 5,836
Dividend received [mRl 4 (5,096) -
Exchange differences M 5 =58 14 218
At 31 March =A=1+—H 19,251 17,369
On 1 April 2008, the Group disposed of 1% equity interest in Marni RZOONFWMA—H AEBUBEITL
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Marmni HK”), a jointly controlled entity, to Marni & XEZERERQA - BMarni (Hong Kong)
International S.A. at a cash consideration of HK$1, reducing its Limited ([Marni HK]) 8% 2 —Z &% T Marni
interest to 49%. Marni HK became an associated company of the International S.A » BERERZR D 2+ ©
Group thereafter as the Group has retained significant influence over ARELERAEE NS Mai HKEBEAZE
Marni HK subsequent to the disposal. As part of the transaction, the 77 MMarni HKEZBEKXARAG 2BE A
Group granted to Marni International S.A. a call option and Marni Bl tEARZH—E D » YREMarni HKE T
International S.A. granted to the Group a put option on the Group’s B 49% 2 1z - AREE LS T Marni International
remaining 49% equity interest in Marni HK, whereby on 1 April S.A —EREEEE - 3 Mamni International S.A. 7k
2013, both parties may exercise the options at formula-based prices BIAREE—EAZRLTRE  FEFIR_0—=
specified in the shareholders agreement. The options are classified FOA—H - mREHZEEMTANEANEE
as financial asset/(liability) at fair value through profit or loss and HERITEEE - Z RS EREATEERE
presented on a net basis in the consolidated statement of financial mERNEREE, (B  WALFESREL
position. EEBARAERA ©
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19

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
At 31 March 2012, the particulars of the associate are as follows:

19 RBEATORE (2
RZO—Z#=A=+—HA  BEAANERN

T

Place of Percentage of Issued and fully paid
Name of associate incorporation equity holding share capital Principal activities
BEAR BB B2y Ava: iR ESL ERITREBERAE FEXEK
Marni (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 49 100 ordinary shares of Designer fashion retailing

a5 HK$1,000 each ERRER

100 B & Ak B A
7% 1,000 7T

The following amounts, representing the Group’s share of the assets,
liabilities and results of an associate, were included in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated income

DATEZJSE@FMEHS%M“_ ZEE - BEBERE
B BEERERGRA P BRRR RS
ﬁﬁi%lﬁ-

statement:
2012 2011
—O—=%f ZO——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T
Current assets MENEE 25,421 27,790
Current liabilities nEBE (10,253) (12,721)
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,083 2,300
Share of net assets b & ESE 19,251 17,369
Income WA 62,305 58,652
Expense S (54,155) (51,450)
Profit before income tax B A 22 ) 8,150 7,202
Income tax expense SR & (1,186) (1,366)
Share of profit after income tax FrhBaFiig &7 6,964 5,836
Proportionate interest in an associate’s LB EIREE A RIS

operating lease commitments & 13,183 9,359

At the date of statement of financial position, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in its associate, and no
contingent liabilities of the entity itself.

Amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable
on demand. The carrying amount of the balance approximates its fair
value.
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20 FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

20

The financial liability at fair value through profit or loss represented
the net fair value of the call and put options as disclosed in Note
19. Valuations of these options were performed by an independent
professional qualified valuer, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited,
using discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

BAFESEEARRLEEHEMAR

BATFEEBIESEN SR E FHEN 20
B0 R R IR A T8 - SRR (B
A BT SRR R RS N A AR
BRAFFBHRRSNE S AR
ELE A -

Group
£5E

2012 2011
—O—=% —O—*%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
At 1 April MA—H 8,160 3,966

Fair value loss on financial liability at fair value  ZAFEBBEFCENSRAE
through profit or loss 2 AEEE 1,788 4,194
At 31 March —A=+—H 9,948 8,160

21 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE ASSETS 21 FELMTARE
Group
58
2012 2011
—O—=f —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Forward foreign exchange contracts INEERE S —IRemELH
— cash flow hedges 2,059 892
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 B&RB&FEAFAR

Group Company
£E AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—0—=% -—O—% =0—-z=f% —-—O—%#
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BEET T BT

Cash at bank and in hand RITREGFRS 166,226 169,912 877 1,148

Short-term bank deposits RHIRITIE K 329,203 309,841 - -
495,429 479,753 877 1,148

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.3% RERITERNERFER0IE(ZO——F

(2011: 0.2%); these deposits had an average maturity of 67 days 0.2F) : WEFRHFHIHARRETR(ZO——

(2011: 75 days). fF75K) e

The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated in the REBRRITETRESUTINEE A8 -

following currencies:

Group
EE
2012 2011
—O—=% —O—*%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong dollars BT 322,426 268,703
United States dollars E7T 156,482 151,726
Renminbi AR 4,651 47,765
Euro dollars BT 11,705 11,394
Others Hih 165 165
495,429 479,753
All the Company’s bank balances and cash are denominated in Hong A AR ZERITEFE RIS IANEBIE RSN -

Kong dollars.
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FEMBWRMET
23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23 EMEZBREREMEE
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at 31 March 2012 is as R-O——&E=A=+—AWENZESEENLE
follows: TR OER SIS -
Group
58
2012 2011
—0O—=% —O—*%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Due within 30 days =+HAEIE 66,248 48,820
Due between 31 to 60 days =—+—HZETHEIH 2,337 2,983
Due between 61 to 90 days AT—HBEN+HIE - 526
Due after 90 days N+BUAERE 28 34
68,613 52,363
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables are REBEMNEMNE ZRBELENEBROREENT
denominated in the following currencies: B S ML A BE (T
2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Euro dollars BT 34,166 24,553
Hong Kong dollars BT 16,756 8,616
United States dollars ET 10,599 14,921
Japanese yen Hot 5,226 3,627
British pound e 1,596 520
Renminbi AR 163 105
Others Hth 107 21
68,613 52,363
24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 B=*x
Number
of shares HK$’000
RHOEE BT T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREESE0.10 T2 Tl
Beginning and end of the year EiEANSEERS 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREESE 0.10 T2 TmM
Beginning and end of the year AR R BAR 1,624,000,000 162,400
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25 RESERVES

The reserves of the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2012 are

25 fEfE

RZO—=—F=ZA=+—H AEERXARQFRZ

analysed as follows: REIITAT
Group
£8
Exchange
Share Capital  Contributed fluctuation Hedging Proposed Retained
premium surplus surplus reserve reserve dividend profits Total
&R BEh HARR ENRBRE HHGE BERS ZEEA a5
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETR  BETR METR METR BETR BMTR #BTR
At 1 April 2010 Z0-OfmA-RER 3,728 76 139,196 (1862 (2519) - 204,067 342,690
Proftfor the year EEEF - - - - - - 132,652 132,652
Nt translation cifferences BB ERF
on foreign operations: EE:
— Subsidiaries -HBAF - - - 3167 - - - 3,167
— Associate -BELT - - - 218 - - - 218
Cash flow hedges: Renggn:
— Fair value gains for the year -REENATENE - - - - 3402 - - 3402
— Deferred income tax recognised ~ —FEEVEITFTIEH - - - - (1,034) - - (1,034)
Dividends paid Bfika - - - - - - (16,240) (16,240)
3,728 76 139,19 1,523 (147) - 320,479 464,855
Interim dvidend proposed EEETHRE - - - - - 64,960 (64,960) -
At 31 March 2011 ZO0—FZA=T-REE 378 76 139,19 1,923 (147) 64,960 265,519 464,855
A1 Apr 2011 —0——4MA-R&R 3728 76 139,19 152 (147) 64,960 255,519 464,855
Profitfor the year EEEF - - - - - - 151,118 151,118
Net translation differences B ELF
on foreign operations: ek
— Subsidiaries -HBAR - - - 2,654 - - - 2,654
— Associate N - - - 14 - - - 14
Cash flow hedges: RN
— Falr value gains for the year -REENATENE - - - - 1817 - - 1817
— Deferred income tax recognised ~ — RN 5H - - - - (192) - - (199)
Dividend paid EikE - - - - - (64,960) - (64,960)
3,728 76 139,196 4,191 1,478 - 406,637 555,306
Interim dvidend proposed EERTERE - - - - - 81,200 (81,200) -
At31 March 2012 ZO-ZHZA=T-BEF 3718 7 139,196 4,191 1478 81,200 325,437 555,306
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25 RESERVES (Continued) 25 @@ (E)
Company
AF

Share Contributed Proposed Retained
premium surplus dividend profits Total
RIPEE AR EERE 2REF Fet
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BRI BT T BET T BET T
At 1 April 2010 —0—OfmA—B#&RE 3,728 159,375 - 55,030 218,133
Profit for the year FERF - - - 61,909 61,909
Dividends paid BERES - - - (16,240) (16,240)
3,728 159,375 - 100,699 263,802
Interim dividend proposed EEETHRE - - 64,960 (64,960) -
At 31 March 2011 —O——%ZA=1+—R#E 3,728 159,375 64,960 35,739 263,802
At 1 April 2011 —O——4MA—B#&RF 3,728 159,375 64,960 35,739 263,802
Profit for the year FEREF - - - 105,230 105,230
Dividend paid ERERE - - (64,960) - (64,960)
3,728 159,375 - 140,969 304,072
Interim dividend proposed EEFTHRE - - 81,200 (81,200) -
At 31 March 2012 —O——#f=ZA=Z1+—R#E 3,728 159,375 81,200 59,769 304,072
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The Group’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the nominal
value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired over the nominal value

of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor during the
group reorganisation in 1990. The Company’s contributed surplus
represents the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1990 over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

At 31 March 2012, the Company had reserves of HK$140,969,000
(2011: HK$100,699,000) available for distribution. The Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of HK$3,728,000 (2011:
HK$3,728,000), may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares. The contributed surplus of HK$159,375,000 (2011:
HK$159,375,000) is distributable subject to the requirements under
section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and Bye-law 134
of the Company.

AEBEZGANBHREEN-NNOFEEEHERK
PR A Z B R A2 IR E{ER R AT 3T IA
R\ ZBMNEEZEZE -  NRABZHMARRE
BER-—ANOFEEEERKERBRATZ AR
BRHARRAETAMERIRZ RINEEZ S

RZO—=—F=ZA=+—H ARBIAIBEDK
2 G BB 140,969,000 T (—O—— % : &
#100,699,000 7T ) ° ANA BRI ABR AT AR X5
& Z B 3 B BR Bl A7E# 3,728,000 L (ZO——
& HB¥3,728,0007T) o AR AIMIBA R IZ
#81981 F A FE( A AHEA B SMER AR EIMA
AR 134 MR DR - Al D IR 58 BB
159,375,000 70 (= O — — % : &% 159,375,000
TT) °
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 26
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

BIEFBR
A A {35 LA B (% k08 BB 22 B 5 B L
EHE -

EBETEIITRNKREBRELERRARE
BEEE  BECEHMEHLS &R — B - Bl
AHREFSHEERBETAIEE - KNS
BT

Group
£
2012 2011
—O—=#f —O—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Deferred income tax assets to be BB 128 A e AEE
recovered after more than 12 months IS &E 9,959 4,281
9,959 4,281
Group
£3
2012 2011
—O—=% —O—*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 April MH—H 4,281 5,327
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income R4r& Uz Rt A (GRERYI)
statement 5,870 (12)
Charged directly to equity =P EER (192) (1,034)
At 31 March =A=1+—H 9,959 4,281
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The gross movement of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
accounts before offsetting is as follows:

132

26 REFRSR(E)
BEREMSHEERABNRESHINT

Deferred tax assets: BEFMBHREE :
Fair value Tax Provision Tax
loss depreciation for inventory losses Total
AT EEE BENE BERE BIEEE Fet
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BRI T BRI T BT T BET T BRI T
At 31 March 2010 —0—0Of=A=1+-H 838 4,423 16 - 5,327
(Charged)/credited to the REENER
consolidated income statement (FZEIZ)/FTA - (226) 8 206 (12)
Charged directly to equity RSP EENR (888) - - - (888)
At 31 March 2011 —0——%=f=+-A - 4,197 2 206 4,427
Credited to the consolidated REFERERETA
income statement - 312 24 5,534 5,870
At 31 March 2012 ZO0—ZF=Z/R=1t—H - 4,509 48 5,740 10,297
Deferred tax liabilities: BEMBHEE
Fair value gain Total
AFERKEE Yy
HK$’000 HK$’°000
BEET T BT T
At 31 March 2010 —O—OF=A=+—H - -
Charged directly to equity TEfg s R BB (146) (146)
At 31 March 2011 —O——#=A=+—~ (146) (146)
Charged directly to equity e E R (192) (192)
At 31 March 2012 —O——%=RA=+—H (338) (338)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried

forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through

future taxable profits is probable.

The Group has potential unrecognised tax losses of HK$69,182,000
(2011: HK$100,057,000) to carry forward against future taxable

income, HK$17,226,000 (2011: HK$14,890,000) of which will expire

within 5 to 10 years. There is no expiry period for other tax losses.

REMEREEDRERBREN =E e R R
RO FE R IR T gk P A 88 2 B RS S 1B e TR
é7\J\ o
AEBAEBEE9,182,000L( —O——F : B
100,057,000 7T ) B /& 75 AR MR BL 745 5 18 A 4582 1A
HIE AR R ERTIA - R BB 17,226,000
TT(—O——% : ¥ 14,890,000 7T) MF I E 1B
HRAZTFEAER - RSB MR -
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27 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Operating lease commitments - as lessee
At 31 March 2012, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

27 XKif

(a) KEEHERE-REL
RZO——F=ZA=+—8  AEERET
ATRGER G ST E M BN 2 RRHEREER

follows: FABFEMT
Group
=
2012 2011
—O—=% —O—%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BEET T BT
Land and buildings: T AT
Not later than one year EF—FNRN 198,000 154,538
Later than one year and not later than ~ £ _ZFAHFA
five years 387,867 247,475
Later than five years A& - 430
585,867 402,443

Payment obligations in respect of operating leases where rentals
vary with gross revenues are not included as future minimum

lease payment.

Operating lease commitments - as lessor
At 31 March 2012, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under a non-cancellable operating lease as

BRERAKRABAINEEAROXNEELT
AEARRBKERESH -

(b) KEHSEE-HAS
RZO——F=ZA=+—8  AEERET
A RSE A AT E T R 2 R R REF & Uk

follows: FABFELNT
Group
@
2012 2011
—O—=%f —O—%
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Land and buildings: T AT

Not later than one year F—FR 11,194 6,494
11,194 6,494
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27 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 27

(c) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure at the date of statement of financial position
but not yet incurred is as follows:

RiE(E)
(c) EXEE
REERBINREENEARIMOT

Group
2012 2011
—O0—=% —O—*%
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETFIT
Property, plant and equipment BEENERBENYE  BE
contracted but not provided for &L 21,560 9,055
28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 HEBATHES

134

The immediate parent of the Group is Allied Wisdom International
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
ultimate parent of the Group is Wisdom Gateway Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following significant related party
transactions:

REENE AR A Alied Wisdom International
Limited - REBELEEN L 2 AR - REEH
HE AR A Wisdom Gateway Limited, A5 & 2
@) AV A/NCTI

BiAMEREDFRBEESN  FAREERS
87 EEEALHEAR S IR EREHE (N
RTETEH BT

(a) Transaction with intermediate holding company (a) EEFNEZERITNRS
Group
£®
2012 2011
ZO0—=f —O—%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Management fee paid to intermediate & MR MR A FIAY
holding company EERBER 990 990
Note: 5T

The above related party transactions are carried at terms mutually
agreed between the parties.

A LB HRRE T RRARBOGEKAMEITH
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

28

RERALIHRS (E)

(b) ERRKMBARNIS

Group
58
2012 2011
—O—=f —O——*%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Rental expenses paid to B TRRNE AT
a fellow subsidiary e Hh 11,859 9,900
Rental income received from BURRRMBARMAS WA
fellow subsidiaries 12,076 8,592

Note:

The above related party transactions are carried at terms mutually
agreed between the parties.

(c) Transaction with an associate

PR -

VAR X R iR T RRAIR B IGRATEITH -

(c) HEEZEATNRS
Group
%
2012 2011
—O—=f —O—*%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Management fee received B E A RN EEREE R
from an associate 2,093 2,169

Note:

The above related party transactions are carried at terms mutually
agreed between the parties.

(d) Key management compensation
Details of disclosure are shown in Note 10.
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Principal Subsidiaries

FENELF

At 31 March 2012

The list give below gives the principal subsidiaries of the Group which are
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results and net assets
of the Group. To give full details of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

—O—=f=ZH=+—8
TERASNRBIDNESRAHAFEREFEATE X
BUAEBFEEEZEHMIAAFINBAR - EER
A LEMNBARNFE  @BERBRTK -

Nominal
value of
issued and
Place of fully paid-up
incorporation and Proportion held share capital/
Name kind of legal entity Place of FERAEIL registered capital
HRRAIFR operations Direct Indirect BRTRAZRE Principal activities
ARER EERRER L& BEREE  BERE AfE/ EREE TTER
Joyce Boutique International British Virgin Islands, Asia 100% - Ordinary US$1,500 Investment holding
Limited limited liability company T TR 1,500 7T REER
RERAHES  ERELLA
Joyce Boutique Limited Hong Kong, Hong Kong 100% - Ordinary HK$100,000  Designer fashion
limited liability company e LEREE 100,000 retaiing
BE - BREMLAA TEABEE
Joyce Beauty (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary HK$10,000 Cosmetics retailing
Limited limited liability company % LEREE10000r TELES
B%  BREALT
Joyce Boutique (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary HK$2 Designer fashion
Limited limited liability company BB LTRREE T retaling & distribution
&% BREEAA TERIEHARE R
52 (L8 BBERAT PRC, wholly foreign-owned PRC - 100%  RMB20,000,000 Designer fashion
enterprise HREARER AR 20,000,000 7T retaling & distribution
REARLAE - NGRERE TE RIT R %
Ad Hoc (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary HK$1,000,000 Designer fashion
limited liability company % LBIAE 1,000,000 retaling
Bt AREALA TEAMRER
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Five-Year Summary Financial Information

EPBERE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited accounts and

AEBREREVBFEZEAMEEREERBEM
ENRHBEAEERERE YOEFMEHEE ZHEN

reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. T e
RESULTS Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
E 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RZO-=fF RZO0—% RzZ0-0% RZOONLE RZOONE
=A=t-H =A=t+—-H =A=t+—H —“A=t+—H —“A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BT
TURNOVER EER 1,324,046 1,147,731 1,063,776 979,953 927,116
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BERA/(B8) 168,354 153,562 41,678 (2,225) 45,447
Finance costs AR (59) (34) (10) (707) 87
Share of profit of jointly controlled entity FEERBEARAR - - - - 11,113
Share of profit of an associate NG 6,964 5,836 3,288 416 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX BHAIRA(BE) 175,265 159,364 44,956 2,516) 56,473
Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (8H)/H% (24,147) (26,712) 9,717) 5,643 (4,390)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY BRFEARERT

HOLDERS 151,118 132,652 35,239 3,127 52,083
Interim dividend R E 81,200 64,960 - - -
Final proposed dividend BREORDRE - - 16,240 - 22,736
Total dividends REgE 81,200 64,960 16,240 - 22,736
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LFEMERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
EEHAR 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
R=0-=% RzZO0O—%F RzZO0-0Ff RZOOhE RZOONE
=ZA=+-A =A=+-B =A=t-B Z=A=t-B =A=1+-H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BB BET T BT
Property, plant and equipment M - BiE REE 99,774 44,469 27,258 65,218 71,730
Deposits, prepayments and other assets &%~ BRAERLETEE 60,196 39,654 34,037 33,018 40,127
Interest in jointly controlled entity HRERLAER - - - - 19,322
Interest in an associate BENRER 19,251 17,369 11,315 19,586 -
Deferred income tax assets BEAMEHEE 9,959 4,281 5,327 4,478 317
Current assets RBEE 820,208 734,346 592,030 526,100 580,244
TOTAL ASSETS wmEE 1,009,388 840,119 669,967 648,400 711,740
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (9,948) (8,160) (3,966) (2,039) -
Current liabilities RBEE (281,734) (204,704) (160,911) (181,475) (205,016)
TOTAL LIABILITIES b= (291,682) (212,864) (164,877) (183,514) (205,016)
NET ASSETS EEZE 717,706 627,255 505,090 464,386 506,724
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